

Napier Civic Building 231 Hastings Street *t* +64 **6 835 7579** *e* info@napier.govt.nz www.napier.govt.nz

1

STRATEGY AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE Open Minutes

Meeting Date:	Tuesday 19 February 2019
Time:	3.00pm – 4.44pm
Venue	Large Exhibition Hall Napier Conference Centre Napier War Memorial Centre Marine Parade Napier
Present	Councillor Price (In the Chair), Mayor Dalton, Councillors Boag, Brosnan, Dallimore, Hague, Jeffery, McGrath, Tapine, Taylor, White, Wise and Wright
In Attendance	Director Infrastructure Services, Director Community Services, Director City Services, Director City Strategy, Manager Communications and Marketing, Chief Financial Officer, Manager Community Strategies Virgil Troy - SIL Research
Administration	Governance Team

Apologies

Nil

Conflicts of interest

Councillor Boag declared her involvement with the Disability Advisory Group in relation to the Napier Disability Strategy in agenda item 1.

Public forum

Napier Disability Strategy

Lynne Gibson spoke in support of the draft Napier Disability Strategy, noting that an inclusive pre-consultation process has taken place with a number of organisations within the disability community. It was noted that the Napier Disability Advisory Group has worked in conjunction with key departments of Council to compile the strategy.

Jacqui Lee of the Napier Hearing Association also spoke in support of the draft Napier Disability Strategy and thanked those involved to date for giving members of the disability community a chance to be heard. The strategy is an exciting and thought provoking opportunity.

Paul Redman and Shelly Te Uki – Napier Sailing Club

Paul spoke on behalf of the Napier Sailing Club (the Club) requesting funding to assist with the cost of the breastwork upgrade. The current state of the breastwork is a safety concern for the Club, which shares their facilities with a number of other water based sports groups. Paul presented photos to Council which highlighted the work required, and noted that the Club also requests support from Council regarding resource consents. *Speaking notes tabled at the meeting* (Attachment A).

In response to questions from Councillors the following points were clarified:

- The proposed works have taken projected rising sea levels into account; the sill height has been raised around 250ml to account for this.
- The Club embraces and welcomes public access and are happy for this to be formalised.
- At this stage the Club is only looking at upgrading the 80m wall. There are future plans for an ongoing marina but this will be at the Club's cost. At that time, assistance from Council may be required regarding consents. It was noted that the new marina would come off the proposed breastwork.

Announcements by the Mayor

Nil

Announcements by the Chairperson

Nil

Announcements by the management

Nil

Confirmation of minutes

Councillors Taylor / Boag

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 13 November 2018 were taken as a true and accurate record of the meeting.

AGENDA ITEMS

1. NAPIER DISABILITY STRATEGY - DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION

Type of Report:	Operational	
Legal Reference:	N/A	
Document ID:	697022	
Reporting Officer/s & Unit:	Natasha Carswell, Manager Community Strategies	

1.1 Purpose of Report

This report summarises the development of the Napier Disability Strategy and requests approval to release it for community feedback prior to its finalisation for adoption by Council.

At the Meeting

Nicki Young, NZ Sign Language Communicator, was acknowledged and welcomed to the meeting.

The Manager Community Strategies spoke to the report, outlining the process undertaken to date in developing the draft strategy through early consultation with a number of groups within the disability community.

Councillors spoke in support of the strategy noting that this is a robust, aspirational document and they are looking forward to receiving community feedback through the consultation process.

In response to questions from Councillors it was clarified that at this stage the strategy is limited to Council services and how those services are provided. Once the strategy has been implemented Council could begin looking at a full community disability strategy.

It was noted that the strategy will also be produced in an easy read/pictorial version.

Committee's recommendation

Councillors Boag / White

That the Strategy and Infrastructure Committee:

a. Approve the release of the draft Napier Disability Strategy for community feedback.

2. NAPIER SAILING CLUB FUNDING REQUEST

Type of Report:	Operational
Legal Reference:	N/A
Document ID:	698622
Reporting Officer/s & Unit:	Bryan Faulknor, Manager Property

2.1 Purpose of Report

To seek Council's approval for a grant to the Napier Sailing Club towards the cost of upgrading the existing breastwork and boardwalk immediately in front of the Napier Sailing Club Clubhouse.

At the Meeting

It was noted that funds are available through the Hawke's Bay Harbour Board Endowment Land Income Account and Council has a responsibility to spend those funds on inner harbour works.

Councillors were happy to see that public access will be formalised and agreed that this work is essential for health and safety reasons.

Committee's recommendation

Mayor Dalton / Councillor Brosnan

That the Strategy and Infrastructure Committee:

- a. Approve a grant to the Napier Sailing Club of 50% of the cost of an upgrade to the breastwork and boardwalk in front of the clubhouse, subject to a maximum grant amount of \$250,000.
- b. That approval of the grant is subject to Council Officers being satisfied as to final design, scope of works, final quote, and compliance with any required consents.
- c. That actual payment to the club is to be made only upon Council Officers being satisfied as to physical progress of the works.
- d. That funding is to be provided from current Inner Harbour capital budgets, which are funded from the Hawke's Bay Harbour Board Endowment Land Income Account.
- e. To authorise the transfer of the appropriate budget from the Inner Harbour Capital budgets to a Grant budget.
- f. That an appropriate variation be made to the current Deed of Lease to secure reasonable public access to the breastwork and boardwalk in front of the clubhouse.

3. REPRESENTATION REVIEW 2018 - LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMISSION DETERMINATION

Type of Report:	Information
Legal Reference:	Local Electoral Act 2002
Document ID:	693953
Reporting Officer/s & Unit:	Deborah Smith, Team Leader Governance

3.1 Purpose of Report

To bring to Council the determination of the Local Government Commission in relation to the 2018 representation review.

At the Meeting

A Councillor spoke to the determination, suggesting that there were no grounds for a judicial review or appeal. The determination gave weight to the work completed by Council officers, and also noted that further work was recommended for the next review in relation to ward boundaries and community boards.

Councillors against the change to a ward-only system commented that the system was inappropriate for Napier and reduced the number of elected members that the public could vote for. Those in support noted that the ward only system would simplify the voting process.

Committee's recommendation

Councillors Boag / Wright

That the Strategy and Infrastructure Committee:

- a. Receive the Local Government Commission determination on the 2018 representation review.
- b. Note that Officers will make the appropriate arrangements for the 2019 elections in liaison with Council's election provider.

4. ORDERING OF CANDIDATES' NAMES ON VOTING DOCUMENTS

Type of Report:	Operational
Legal Reference:	Local Electoral Act 2001
Document ID:	694417
Reporting Officer/s & Unit:	Deborah Smith, Team Leader Governance

4.1 Purpose of Report

To obtain a decision from the Council on the ordering of candidates' names on voting documents, as per the Local Electoral Act 2001.

At the Meeting

In response to questions from Councillors, the Team Leader Governance confirmed that at the 2016 Local Government elections, Napier was the only Council in the region using the randomised order for candidates' names on voting papers; however, there have been strong indications from the other Councils in the region that they intend to move in this direction for the 2019 elections. It was noted that although the Government elected not to enforce this it is generally accepted that randomised order is best practice; research suggests that alphabetical order favours candidates at the beginning of the alphabet.

Committee's recommendation

Councillors McGrath / Taylor

That the Strategy and Infrastructure Committee:

a. Endorse the presentation of candidates' names in random order on voting documents for the 2019 Local Government Elections.

5. NAPIER ROLL OF HONOUR

Type of Report:	Procedural
Legal Reference:	Local Government Act 2002
Document ID:	697896
Reporting Officer/s & Unit:	Charles Ropitini, Strategic Maori Advisor

5.1 Purpose of Report

To consider and approve the reviewed Napier Roll of Honour for display at the War Memorial Centre site.

At the Meeting

Councillors acknowledged the hard work of those involved to date to ensure that the roll of honour is as accurate as possible.

In response to questions from Councillors management confirmed that, where possible and practicable, attempts were made to contact the families of those identified to be removed from the roll of honour. A Councillor noted their unease in relation to removing names from the roll of honour where the family could not be contacted.

Committee's recommendation

Mayor Dalton / Councillor Taylor

That the Strategy and Infrastructure Committee:

- a. Approve the Napier Roll of Honour as an official Civic list of war dead for display at the War Memorial Centre site, and:
- b. Approve that 15 identified names from the 1995 Roll of Honour deemed by research to have good and legitimate reason for removal are not carried forward to the revised Roll of Honour.

Type of Report:	Operational	
Legal Reference:	N/A	

6. WAR MEMORIAL DESIGN OPTIONS CONSULTATION

699633

Reporting Officer/s & Unit: Natasha Carswell, Manager Community Strategies

6.1 Purpose of Report

Document ID:

This report provides the feedback received during consultation on concept design options for a War Memorial. It is recommended that Council select an option in order to proceed with development of a concept brief and subsequent construction of a War Memorial for Napier.

At the Meeting

Virgil Troy of SIL Research and the Manager Community Strategies spoke to the report, outlining the consultation process undertaken and noting that 65% preferred the garden option. Although other options were submitted, none of those substantially departed from the concepts consulted on.

In response to questions from Councillors the following points were clarified:

- The responses did not indicate that preference for an indoor option was diluted by having more than one; there was a clear preference for the garden option.
- The majority of the 172 submissions that had been removed were due to incomplete or unusable responses. 10 were assessed as allegedly being from the same person or double-ups which was validated through checking IP addresses and other methods. It was noted that removing those 10 submissions does not affect the overall result.
- The survey was targeted at Napier residents therefore submissions from outside of Napier were removed. No special requests were made by non-residents in their submissions explaining why they considered their views should be included.
- Over sampling is considered best practice to ensure that enough clean data is achieved to present accurate results.

Councillor Brosnan acknowledged the Chair's recommendation in the officer's report and moved a substantive motion which had been prepared in consultation with members of the public actively following the matter, including Guy Natusch. The substantive motion draws on key items taken from the submissions and was assessed against criteria including 'important elements', 'what the community said' and 'outcome wants'; *these criteria were tabled at the meeting* (**Attachment B**). The intention is that officer's at the direction of Council, prepare a final design to be adopted by Council in five months' time.

Management noted that the proposed timeline was of concern given the level of work required and that this may not be practically achievable.

In response to questions, Councillor Brosnan clarified that the new roll of honour would be displayed and the old physical roll of honour would be incorporated into the site in another way based on the recommendation of an appropriate committee. The location of the memorial will still be the floral clock site in accordance with Council's decision of 27 September 2017, but raised to forecourt level.

Councillors in support of the motion noted the following points:

- This motion is a combination of all three options.
- The direction from Council on 2 October 2018 was to go out for feedback and input on the three options. Councillors noted that it should not be a tick box exercise but rather to receive input into a community-led design.
- Submissions noted a clear desire to pay homage to the original design and return the flame to the building, ensuring the flame is at forecourt level, 24/7 access and providing an area for reflection. This motion recognises that the building and the whole site are key to the memorial.
- This motion provides clear direction to experts to produce something for those sharing the space.
- The concepts are broad enough to still allow flexibility in design.
- This is a good compromise and seems to be one that most can live with. Any problems will be worked through in the design process.
- As a gesture of good faith we should just go for it.

Councillors speaking against the motion noted the following points:

- Council is trying to design by committee.
- The results of the survey were clear, with twice as much support for the garden/landscape option than the next option.
- Concern was expressed as to whether enough of the garden option had been incorporated into the proposal given this was the strongly preferred option through the consultation.
- Giving officers such a prescriptive directive is limiting and denies officers the ability to work with a clear mind.
- The information was only provided to officers and some Councillors at the meeting and it would have been useful to also have a visual to help envisage what this proposal would look like, as was done for the consultation options.
- Further due diligence is required before a final decision can be made.

Some discussion was held around the wording of the motion with minor tweaks being agreed to by the mover and seconder.

Officer's Recommendation

That the Strategy and Infrastructure Committee:

- a. Note the feedback provided by the community during consultation on design options for a War Memorial, and
- b. Select an option to develop a concept brief and subsequent construction of a War Memorial for Napier.

Substantive motion Committee's recommendation

Councillors Brosnan / Wise

That the Strategy and Infrastructure Committee:

- a. Considers the community feedback,
- b. Reconfirms its decision made on 27 September 2017 to locate the War Memorial at the Floral Clock site, and
- c. Provides direction on a design concept.
- d. That Council staff take the following design direction to create a final design concept for adoption by Council:
 - 1. That the reinstated Memorial be constructed at forecourt level, on the floral clock site, forming part of the War Memorial Site,
 - 2. That a curved wall, open to the elements, mimicking the ballroom shape and physically connected to the building, display the Roll of Honour,
 - 3. That the Perpetual Flame be built into the existing War Memorial Building Entranceway so that it is visible when entering the building, from the Memorial and externally at night,
 - 4. That water be incorporated into the design that is near to and complements the flame, so that they can be viewed together,
 - 5. That a place/s to sit and reflect be included,
 - 6. That physical access and visual connection to the formal lawn be incorporated,
 - 7. That remembrance artwork be commissioned, to connect the Memorial space with the Memorial Building and lower lawn, uniting the Memorial elements; and that this be given as a brief to the Arts Advisory Group to commission,
 - 8. That landscaping is included that complements and promotes restful contemplation, and unites the Memorial Building with the Memorial elements,
 - 9. That the design include flag poles connecting the Memorial and Memorial building,
 - 10. That WW1 and WW2 Rolls be displayed in a prominent way flowing onto future conflicts such as Vietnam and Boer War Rolls,
 - 11. That the physical original Roll of Honour be respectfully incorporated into the design and that a small committee of appropriate representatives are given this brief, to provide Council a recommendation on 'how to incorporate'.
- e. Note Councils intention to adopt a final design no later than August 2019 and begin construction as soon as practicable in the 2019 calendar year.

The division was declared *carried* by 12 votes to 1 vote the voting being as follows:

- *For:* Councillors Boag, Brosnan, Dallimore, Hague, Jeffery, McGrath, Price, Tapine, Taylor, White, Wise and Wright
- Against: Mayor Dalton

7. GREENDALE POOL FUNDING DECISION: COUNCIL PROJECTS FUND

Type of Report:	Operational
Legal Reference:	N/A
Document ID:	700270
Reporting Officer/s & Unit:	Glenn Lucas, Manager Sport & Recreation

7.1 Purpose of Report

To approve a \$50,000 grant to Greendale Committee to contribute towards the restoration of the Taradale School Pool (Greendale Pool).

At the Meeting

A Councillor spoke against the motion, noting that Council will end up with two community pools in Taradale and that Council would be supporting the upgrade of a 70 year old pool while planning to replace a 20 year old pool in Onekawa.

Councillors speaking in support of the motion noted the following points:

- The Greendale pool is on Ministry of Education land and initially they were not supporting the upgrade. They have now become involved.
- Funding of \$50,000 is conditional upon receipt of a signed tender agreement.
- The Prebensen Drive aquatic centre will be a community pool and offer a variety of other activities whereas the Greendale pool is just a basic pool primarily used for lane swimming.
- Council would be supporting the club in order to support the community, much the same as Council has agreed to support the Napier Sailing Club.

In response to questions, Council officers were unaware whether Sport New Zealand had made any comment regarding the Greendale Pool.

Committee's recommendation

Councillors Wise / Taylor

That the Strategy and Infrastructure Committee:

a. Approve that \$50,000 be allocated from the 2019/20 Council Project Fund to the Greendale Committee to restore the Taradale School Pool, conditional upon the receipt of a signed tender agreement signalling the commencement of the refurbishment work.

The division was declared <u>carried</u> by 12 votes to 1 vote the voting being as follows:

For: Mayor Dalton, Councillors Boag, Brosnan, Dallimore, Hague, Jeffery, Price, Tapine, Taylor, White, Wise and Wright

Against: Councillor McGrath

8. ROAD STOPPING - CORNER OF GEDDIS AND LONGFELLOW AVENUES

Type of Report:	Legal	
Legal Reference:	Local Government Act 1974	
Document ID:	696916	
Reporting Officer/s & Unit:	Bryan Faulknor, Manager Property	
	Jenny Martin, Property and Facilities Officer	

8.1 Purpose of Report

To confirm the Council resolution of 30 October 2018 to initiate the road stopping process in accordance with the 10th Schedule of the Local Government Act 1974 and subsequent sale of approximately 188m² of the current legal road on the corner of Geddis and Longfellow Avenues, to Ahuriri District Health.

At the Meeting

It was noted that the road stopping will vastly improve access to the area and support the new medical centre. The new medical centre will be extended onto the site of the old medical centre.

Committee's recommendation

Councillors Jeffery / Boag

That the Strategy and Infrastructure Committee:

- a. Declare the road adjoining 65 Geddis Avenue, as described in the Schedule hereto, to be stopped; and
- b. Transfer the stopped road to the owners of the adjoining land, as described in the Schedule hereto, and require the amalgamation of the stopped road with the adjoining land under one record of title.

SCHEDULE

Hawkes Bay Land District – Napier City

Area	Description	Adjoining Land
0.0188 ha	Section 1 SO Plan	Record of Title
	530636	HBM3/1138

9. OMARUNUI REFUSE LANDFILL JOINT COMMITTEE MINUTES 7 DECEMBER 2018

Type of Report:	Information
Legal Reference:	N/A
Document ID:	696550
Reporting Officer/s & Unit:	Cheree Ball, Governance Advisor

9.1 Purpose of Report

To present to Council the unconfirmed minutes of the Omarunui Refuse Landfill Joint Committee meeting, held on 7 December 2018.

At the Meeting

There was no discussion on this item.

Committee's recommendation

Councillors Tapine / Hague

That the Strategy and Infrastructure Committee:

a. Receive the unconfirmed minutes of the Omarunui Refuse Landfill Joint Committee meeting from 7 December 2018.

Carried

The meeting adjourned at 4.31pm to allow the Regulatory Committee meeting to take place before moving into committee.

Councillors Taylor / Hague

The Strategy and Infrastructure Committee meeting reconvened at 4.44pm following the Regulatory Committee meeting.

PUBLIC EXCLUDED ITEMS

Councillors White / Brosnan

That the public be excluded from the following parts of the proceedings of this meeting, namely:

1. Omarunui Refuse Landfill Joint Committee Public Excluded Minutes 7 December 2018

Carried

The general subject of each matter to be considered while the public was excluded, the reasons for passing this resolution in relation to each matter, and the specific grounds under Section 48(1) of the Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 for the passing of this resolution were as follows:

General subject of each matter to be considered.	Reason for passing this resolution in relation to each matter.	Ground(s) under section 48(1) to the passing of this resolution.
 Omarunui Refuse Landfill Joint Committee Public Excluded Minutes 7 December 2018 	7(2)(h) Enable the local authority to carry out, without prejudice or disadvantage, commercial activities 7(2)(i) Enable the local authority to carry on, without prejudice or disadvantage, negotiations (including commercial and industrial negotiations)	48(1)A That the public conduct of the whole or the relevant part of the proceedings of the meeting would be likely to result in the disclosure of information for which good reason for withholding would exist: (i) Where the local authority is named or specified in Schedule 1 of this Act, under Section 6 or 7 (except 7(2)(f)(i)) of the Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987.

The meeting moved into committee at 4.44pm.

Approved and adopted as a true and accurate record of the meeting.

Chairperson

Date of approval

ATTACHMENT A

Refer Public Forum – Napier Sailing Club

INTRODUCTION Shelly Te Uki our manager, Self Club Commodore

Thanks for this time and acknowledgements

This meeting has its roots from April last year when we had a meeting with Bill, Wayne, and several council staff. Wayne indicated there could be some funds in the HAWKES BAY HARBOUR BOARD LAND ENDOWMENT FUND for our Breastwork project. I understand that one of your engineers left so things went a little quite. The AHURIRI ESTUARY AND COASTAL EDGE MASTER PLAN THEN APPEARED and it seemed opportune that we should work together with that project.

WE have a brief presentation to clarify what we require which I will explain as we go. SHELL.

PRESENTATION

I trust that you have read Graeme Robinsons engineers report. Those of you that know Graeme will attest to his thoroughness. He is a stalwart of our club and very familiar with the original work and what we now require. His report could perhaps be a little bias but none the less factual. As he indicates the existing structure is around 40 years old and requires constant repair work to keep it safe for our members and the public. It was originally built mainly by volunteers and scrounged materials but those days are long gone. The piles have eroded away and it is impossible to replace the timber facings. It has reached the end of its useful life and is becoming an eyesore.

We see the new, modern breastwork as a big part of the overall COASTAL EDGE PLAN and a safe and visually appealing structure for ourselves and the public to enjoy as a walkway or cycle or scooter path.

Our club caters for and is welcoming to all forms of water sport and the general public.

It is also the gateway to Our City for visiting coastal and overseas vessels. The breastwork and associated floating pontoon is where visiting vessels berth. With the forthcoming Americas cup I have it on good authority we will get visitors as overseas luxury yachts continue down the coast. After our previous meeting in April which we felt very positive about, We obtained an estimated quote from Lattey Civil construction. They visited the site and agreed that what we had in mind and where we intended to put it was fairly straightforward. The type of structure is very common now and relatively simple to do. Using Driven H section galvanised steel piles with Precast concrete slabs placed vertically. The slabs are able to have designs cast into them (as in the viaduct at Auckland and the Takanini motor way) and perhaps an Art Deco scene would be most appropriate. The slabs are then backfilled with suitable rubble and a concrete walkway either precast or poured on top. This would then link to our existing grassed area and car park. This type of construction was used on a section of wall that council assisted us with near the Bluewater Hotel a couple of years ago. It is simple and tidy.

At that time the cost for the 80 metre wall was \$464.300. but of course very dependent on final design and I would assume a figure near to \$500.000

IN CONCLUSION.

As expressed earlier, we are a non profit organisation that has to keep a tight reign on the purse strings to function.

We respectfully ask that council is able to assist us financially to the tune of 50% of this much needed \$500.000 breastwork up grade. We are poised and would work towards getting the work done over the coming winter. We of course abide by councils desire to approve the design and progress payment schedule. We do understand that there could be a slight variation in our land use with regard to public access to our grounds, but that happens now and is something that we embrace.

Furthermore we have plans in place to construct an additional MARINA. We are not asking for financial assistance for this project but any assistance from council to smooth the Consent, Permit and dredging process would be most helpful. We understand that and existing grocess would be most we must all remember that The Napier sailing Club and the Inner Harbour is the front door to Visiting vessels and the only all weather safe Haven between Tauranga and Wellington. Our club has the infrastructure to cater for these visitors.

Thanyou for your time today and if time permits will endeavour to answer any question you may have now or later.

Thankyou

ATTACHMENT B

Refer Agenda Item 6 – War Memorial Design Options Consultation

Tabled - Motion - Assessment Criteria

Themes: Important Elements:

(Pulled from submissions of special interest groups incl 2 of the designers, RSA's, historians, and focus group feedback)

- Connected to, in or on the War Memorial Building
- Respectful display of the Roll and Perpetual Flame
- Inclusion of Water
- Place to reflect
- Memorial elements be a visual part of each War Memorial Building user experience

Themes: What the Community said:

- Combination of the 3 designs (liked and disliked elements of all)
- 24/7 accessibility and ease of access
- Place to reflect, have quiet contemplation space
- Something 'like the original'
- Flame protected from vandalism
- Generally concur with the 'Important Elements' themes above

Themes: Outcome Wants

- A community led design and input
- Important elements re-instated
- Special interest groups views weighed heavily
- Not a 'new' Memorial design
- Not a 'side-lined' 'distant' 'unconnected' reinstated Memorial design

*Please turn over for assessment of design direction (motion) against these criteria

Design Direction (motion) Assessment

Important Elements:

Connected to, in or on the War Memorial Building

- Roll of Honnor and wall connected to, and Flame in, the memorial building Respectful display of the Roll and Perpetual Flame
- High quality materials used for the memorial elements housing Inclusion of Water
- Included in the Flame housing display Place to reflect
- Seating and 'quiet' space included
 Memorial elements being a visual part of each War Memorial Building user experience
- Everyone passively entering the building will pass the Perpetual flame, water and see the roll

What the community said - Assessment

Combination of the 3 designs

- Forecourt Option It is on the forecourt/ part of the site
- Indoor Option It is attached to and in the building
- Garden Option It is visually and physically connected to the parade and lawn
 24/7 Accessibility and access
- The Roll and Flame will be accessible 24/7 Place to reflect, quiet contemplation space
- You will be able to visit the Memorial without being in the 'middle' of an event
- There will be seating, water and connectivity with the parade promoting quiet space **Something 'like the original'**
- The similarities to the original Guy Natusch Memorial include
 - Curved external wall housing the Roll
 - \circ Every user of the building passing the memorial elements on entry
 - o Water included
 - Reflection space
 - o Roll open to the elements

Flame Protected

- The flame could not be extinguished

Generally concur with the 'Important Elements' list above

- See above

Outcome Wants

- A community led design and input
 - \circ ~ The design direction has come 100% from submission input
- Important elements re-instated
 - Yes as shown in above assessment "important elements"
 - Special interest groups views weighed heavily
 - \circ $\;$ The qualitative feedback from special interest groups has formed the basis of the design criteria
- Not a 'new' Memorial design
 - The design criteria map the Memorial back to the Memorial site, in a way that is similar (as assessed above) to the original design, and incorporate all of the memorial elements in and on the site
- Not a 'side-lined' 'distant' 'unconnected' reinstated Memorial design